Date, Time: Tuesday, April 26, 1:00pm, Zoom

Attendees: Rob Bunton, Rev Will Green, Karin Elofson (scribe), Karen (Lulu) Friedman

- 1) Call to Order Karin
- 2) Opening Prayer Rev Will
- 3) Review of Previous Minutes Minutes approved as written.

4) Unfinished Business

- a) What decisions are made by Finance Committee and what must stay with the Board?
 - i) Purchases, such as new hymnals, will stay with the Board.
 - ii) Grant applications can be driven by the Finance Committee.
- b) CPA Lulu had an informal talk with Joannie Glenn and learned that she would charges \$200 a month for her to run payroll. In addition, she is supporting one non-profit on the Island and is not interested in taking on a second. We will not pursue a CPA at this time.
- c) Additional Finance Team members Joanne will join in May; Will to ask Nancy Arnold.
- d) Utilities Increase, 2022 versus previous years
 - i) Rob to calculate differences in kilowatt usage and gallons of oil to see the impact of opening the Church to more activities.
 - ii) Rev Will to provide breakdown of building use.
 - iii) Q1 2021 may not be good data point as Church was closed due to COVID, but Q1 2020 might be representative. Church did not stop meeting in person until March 2020.
- e) Tithe.ly
 - Lulu is open to revisiting QuickBooks upon Joanie's recommendation. We would most likely get the program for \$300 rather than purchase an online monthly subscription. Butch is supportive of QuickBooks as well but says the hard part is in the set-up.
 - ii) Lulu to review Google Workspace accounting.
 - iii) Karin to move the Tithe.ly APP forward during the coming month.
 - iv) Can a QSR code be generated to make online giving easier for visitors?
- f) Holistic 5-year plan, 2022 2027
 - i) With regard to renovations, plan phases by different areas of the Church.
 - ii) Growing membership how to appeal to different age groups. Thoughts -
 - (1) Parenting group
 - (2) Children's Festival August
 - (3) Play group for < 3-year-olds.
 - iii) Involve Board in this planning.
- 5) New Business

NBC FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

a) Space Rental – need to confirm whether rental income for events is taxable. *Relevant article attached to these minutes.*

6) Deferred Business

- a) Part-time Admin Position *defer discussion until September, as part of 2023 budget planning.*
- b) Proposed responsibilities:
 - i) Office management e.g., organize files, ensure all new employees complete necessary paperwork, ensure CA&P student files are complete and copies of emergency forms made accessible to CA&P staff.
 - ii) Support website updates
 - iii) Review mail, ensure bills are collected and transferred to Treasurer
 - iv) Thank you notes for donations, etc.
 - v) Support for financial procedures, like deposits
- 7) Next Meeting Tuesday, May 24th at 1:00 pm.
- 8) Adjournment 2:15pm

DOES YOUR CHURCH OWE INCOME TAXES? Frank Sommerville, JD, CPA

Most church executives are aware that the church is exempt from federal income tax. But many of them make the mistake of applying this general rule across the board. As with virtually all tax rules, exceptions exist. This article is designed to give the church executive where the church may owe income taxes. Since this is complicated topic, please do not take any actions without consulting with a competent nonprofit tax professional.

HISTORY

When the income tax was first enacted, no income taxes were imposed on nonprofit organizations. But when a major university bought the largest producer of spaghetti in the U.S. to make it exempt from taxes, Congress decided that some exceptions to the general tax exemption should apply. In 1954, Congress enacted what is known today as the unrelated business income tax, or UBIT for short. A church owes income taxes if it has income that is (1) from a trade or business (2) regularly conducted that is (3) not substantially related to their exempt purpose. Notice that fundraising has no bearing on this issue. If General Motors were to decide to give away it profits, it would not turn into a tax exempt organization. No matter how well intentioned as a fundraiser, the UBIT rules still apply. The best general rule I have found is this: If your church is competing with a business, then UBIT applies. By the way, the church must have \$1,000.00 of gross business income before a tax return (Form 990T) is due. Taxes are only paid on the net income from the activity.

Since so many churches are financing their real estate acquisitions, Congress decided to create another income source that is subject to income tax: debt financed property. Anytime real estate that is subject to a purchase money mortgage is rented or leased to third parties (including another nonprofit or church) then the income is subject to tax. Also, any rentals from personal property are also subject to taxes.

EXCEPTIONS TO UBIT

Though the three elements described above apply to an income source, one must still consider the exceptions to the general rule. First, passive income such as interest is not subject to tax. Nor is income from the sale of donated goods subject to tax. Goods and services that are provided for the convenience of the churches members are also not taxable. Sale of services that are substantially performed by volunteers is also still exempt from tax. Finally, rent from real estate that is not debt financed is generally not subject to tax.

PRACTICAL APPLICATIONS

Let's take several common examples from my church files and apply the above general rules to them.

BOOKSTORE: If the bookstore only sells books, tapes and CDs that further the message of the church, then the income is not subject to tax. On the other hand, if the bookstore sells gift items or aspirin, then sales from those items will result in taxes being owed. Besides these rules, if the bookstore keeps the same hours as B. Dalton, prices its books like B. Dalton, or in general competes with B. Dalton, then all the profits from the bookstore operation will be taxed.

MEALS AND DRINKS: Many churches enjoy meals together, charging their members for the meal. The taxation of this issue will be determined by the scope and regularity of food service. If the meals are only for the convenience of the members (such as before a service or mass), then the convenience exception will apply and the income will not be taxed. The convenience exception will also apply to the vending machine income. On the other hand, if your church food service operates "restaurant hours," then the income is subject to tax.

WEDDINGS, FUNERALS, ETC. Many churches charge for the use of their facilities for weddings, funerals and anniversary parties. If the fee is solely for the use of the facility, then it is not subject to tax, unless the church is debt financed property. If the church is debt financed property, then the church may avoid taxes if the event is religious, such as a wedding. If the event is secular and the church is debt financed property, then the church must pay taxes on the rents received.

ADVERTISING IN CHURCH BULLETINS, GROCERY AND PHONE CARDS: The general rule requires taxation of all advertising revenue. If a business pays for an ad in the Sunday bulletin, then the revenue is taxed. But, again, exceptions may save the day. If the bulletin is composed, printed and distributed by volunteers, then the all volunteer exception will allow the revenue to escape taxation. Another rule may also help: donor recognition. The church may recognize donors in its bulletin because donor recognition is not advertising. What is the difference? Donor recognitions simply list the name address and phone numbers of the donor. Advertising contains slogans and calls for action, such as "call for the best service in town." Donor recognition tells the nature of the donor's business, such as "a local Christian bookstore." Many times advertising will contain logos and other product identification, such as "your local Ford dealer." While a technical discussion is necessary before fully understanding the nuances involved, the church should decide whether it wants a advertising bulletin or a donor recognition bulletin and structure it accordingly. By the way, some commercial companies will provide a fee to your church to use their bulletins where they have sold advertising. These payments are also subject to tax.

Every major grocery chain has a program to help their communities. They assign your church a code. Each time that code is entered, the grocery chain contributes one percent (1%) of that sale to the church. Long distance companies were the pioneers in this area. If the church promotes the cards in any way with paid staff, then the IRS considers the payments commissions for directing customers to that business. The payments are

taxable. On the other hand, if all aspects of the cards are handled by volunteers, then the volunteer exception will allow the payments to escape taxation.

DAY CARE/SCHOOLS: Many churches operate day care centers or schools. These are considered substantially related to the church's exempt purpose or serve an exempt purpose themselves. So no taxes are due.

Charter schools may be different. If a church hires an outside company to manage or operate the school, then the net fees may be unrelated business income subject to tax.

Sometimes the church will lease its facilities to a day care operator. If the church is not providing any personal property, the rent is not taxable. However, if the church provides any personal property, such as desks, chairs and toys, the answer may change. If the personal property's value is significant, then the rent is probably all or partially taxable.

TRAVEL: Some churches sponsor educational travel. For example, your church sponsors a trip to the Holy Land to instruct parishioners about the place of the Bible. If the primary purpose is truly educational, then no tax is due. On the other hand, if the trip includes free days or days with only a few hours of formal instruction, then taxes are due. The general rule: If the trip contains any elements of fun, then taxes are due. The rules are complicated, so check with a competent tax adviser before booking the trip. Same rules apply to missions trips if they have significant fun days.

CONCLUSION

The church must be alert to its many revenue sources. By careful planning, the church can avoid most adverse tax consequences. The church must constantly monitor its activities and consult with nonprofit tax professionals when new income sources appear.

By the way, since churches do not generally file income tax returns, the statute of limitations runs forever. By filing a tax return (though it shows no tax liability), the church starts the statute of limitations. With a filed return, the normal statute of limitations is three years. Some churches choose to file Form 990T annually simply to close the door on those old years so IRS cannot assess taxes for all the mistakes since Noah.